SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 25, 2013
9:10 a. m

9:10: 02 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:10 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Cick Bishop
Senat or Lyman Hof f man

ALSO PRESENT

Tim Lankin, Staff, Senat or St evens; Kris Curtis,
Legislative Auditor, Legislative Budget and Audit; Patrick
Pillai, Executive Director, Speci al Education Service

Agency (SESA); MIlie Ryan, Executive Director, REACH Inc.;
Les Morse, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent .

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

CGenevieve Hollins, Finance Director, SESA, Mar gar et
Kavanaugh, Teacher, Kodi ak; Jennifer Eubank, Teacher,
Kodi ak.

SUVMVARY

SB 17 EXTEND SPECI AL EDUCATI ON SERVI CE AGENCY

SB 17 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.



#sb17
SENATE BILL NO. 17

"An Act extending the special education service
agency; and providing for an effective date."

9:10: 10 AM

TIM LAWMKIN, STAFF, SENATOR STEVENS, discussed the bill,
which would extend the Special Education Service Agency
(SESA). He presented the bill with a sunmary of actions
taken in the Senate Education Conmittee. The bill extended
SESA with three separate issues. One issue was whether or
not to extend the sunset date of the agency, which set to
expire on June 30, 2013. The second issue addressed
considerations pointed out in the audit including the
structure of SESA's governance. The third issue was
funding. He nentioned recommendations to increase the
funding for SESA. A fourth issue presented itself upon
consideration of the bill, which included extraneous
| anguage regarding the Division of Retirement and Benefits.
The reconmmendation from Legislative Budget and Audit (LB&A)
was to extend the sunset date. The LB&A conmittee
determined that the program was worthy w thout services
dupl i cat ed el sewhere.

M. Lankin explained that SESA was governed as a non-profit
agency with its own board of directors through the
Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education.
The majority of SESA's board sat on the governor's council.
The menbers had a vested interest in the issues addressed
by SESA. He added that the non-profit organization was
funded by the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent
(DEED). The structure, while unorthodox, functions well. No
recomendati ons were made to change the nethods of funding
and governing SESA. The LB&A audit recommendati ons incl uded
suggestions that the legislature review its funding. The
Senate Education Comm ttee chose not to review the issue of
funding. He agreed that SESA had been flat and underfunded
for 15 years. Due to inflation, a 36 percent decrease was
suffered in operating funds. He encouraged the Senate
Fi nance Comm ttee to consider funding increased for SESA

9:13: 39 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 02/25/13 9:10 A M



M. Lankin discussed the Senate Education Conmittee CS,
which renoved |anguage that indicated that the anount
allocated to the agency should be reduced each fiscal vyear
by the amount contributed by DEED to the Public Enpl oyees'
Retirement System (PERS) and the Teachers Retirenent System
(TRS). However, DEED allocated the full appropriation to
SESA annually and then SESA paid directly to the retirenent
system He provided a statement from the departnent that
t he | anguage was extraneous and that all parties agreed to
remove it from the books. He offered to provide the
statenment to commttee nenbers.

9:14: 42 AM

Co-Chair Meyer asked for further details about the
st at enent .

M. Lankin replied that the statement from M. Neil
Slotnick fromthe Departnent of Law (LAW and Ms. Elizabeth
Nudel man from DEED was available in the conmttee' s packet.

Senator O son agreed that SESA was an inportant program He
asked about services that would be omtted if the funding
was not increased.

M. Lankin replied that school districts had varying
resources for special education that depended on the size
of the district. Mst school districts had their own
speci al education teachers. He noted that SESA served a
niche of people wth Jlowincident disabilities that
standard special education teachers were not trained to
handl e.

9:16: 59 AM

KRIS CURTIS, LEGQ SLATIVE AUD TOR, LEG SLATIVE BUDGET AND
AUDI T, explained that the purpose of the audit was to
determine that SESA provided an essential service. She
stated that LB&A conducted a sunset audit of SESA, with the
goal of determning if the agency was operating in the
public's interest and whether its termnation date should
be extended. The conclusion was that SESA served a public
need and was essential in neeting the federal |aw requiring
the state to insure that all children with disabilities had
a free and appropriate public education that net their
uni que needs. She added that SESA served over 200 students
| ocated nostly in non-urban |ocations. She reconmended the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 02/25/13 9:10 A M



extension of SESA's term nation date until June 30, 2021,
whi ch was the maxi mum 8 year extension.

Ms. Curtis noted that the recomendati on for extension was
acconpani ed by the recommendation to inprove collaboration
and oversight. The l|argest issue facing SESA was the flat
funding of its lowincidence disabilities program The
funding level was set in statute and had not been increased
in 14 vyears, thereby decreasing the real value of its
budget by 36 percent. The funding issue made it difficult
to hire qualified staff. The funding for SESA was
identified in the public school funding statutes and
adm ni stered by DEED. She added that DEED coul d request an
increase as part of its annual budgetary process, but chose
not to since SESA organizationally reports to the
Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education,
which is located in the Departnment of Health and Soci al
Servi ces (DHSS)

Ms. Curtis continued that the governor's council did
support unsuccessful legislation during the past session to
increase SESA' s budget. Since DEED was the entity that was
obligated to neet the federal requirenent, the audit
determned that DEED should take a nore active role in
noni toring SESA. The audit reconmended that both DEED and
SESA nmanagenent collaborate to ensure that SESA was
operated and funded as intended by the I|egislature. She
stated that DEED did not agree with the reconmmendati on. The
funding for SESA was historically a |egislative process and
DEED opined that there was no need to change the nethod

She understood the viewpoint of DEED, since the oversight
responsibility for SESA was fragnented and confusing. She
poi nted out a section of the audit report addressing SESA s
organi zational structure and highlighting the need for
legislative clarification regarding nonitoring SESA. The
audit contained a second recommendati on addressed to SESA's
board president to revise the board policy to inprove
oversight. She stated that the board initiated changes to
i nprove oversi ght.

9:20: 47 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough asked about page 18 of the LB&A
audit. She asked if the board president was the previous
board presi dent overseeing the executive director.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 02/25/13 9:10 A M



Ms. Curtis pointed out a recent change in the executive
di rector position, but was unsure about the board.

Vice-Chair Fairclough <clarified that SESA had a new
executive director.

Ms. Curtis replied in the affirmative.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked about the board's history of
difficulty reaching a quorum

Ms. Curtis replied that the issue of reaching a quorum was
not a problemfor the SESA board.

9:22:16 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy asked about recommendati on nunber two of
the audit. He believed that a certified teacher fell under
the professional teaching ethics code. He asked if SESA' s
teachers were certified.

Ms. Curtis replied that the audit cited that "SESA has
procedures for potential ethics violations of teachers, but
does not have procedures for addressing potential ethics
viol ations involving adm ni strati on and managenent."

Senator Dunleavy stated that if "they have a type A or type
B they would still fall wunder the professional teaching
practices comm ssion."

Ms. Curtis replied that question was best suited for the
executive director.

Vice-Chair Fairclough asked about different boards and
conmi ssi ons and their nmaxi nrum extensi ons.

Ms. Curtis replied that the statute provided for a nmaxi num
extension of eight years. An audit wusually contained a
recommendati on not to exceed eight years.

Vice-Chair Fairclough conpared the suicide prevention
council's six year extension, which she believed was the
maxi mum al | owabl e. She opined that the extension of the
Sui cide Prevention Council when audited had |ess concerns
than SESA's audit. She asked how the extension for the
Sui ci de Prevention Council was detern ned.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 02/25/13 9:10 A M



M. Curtis responded that the main issue that drove the
Sui ci de Prevention Council's extension date was the |ack of
agreenent ensuring that effective oversight would continue
in the future. The inportance of the recomrendati on drove
t he six year extension.

9:24: 38 AM

Co-Chair Meyer asked about concerns regarding a shorter
ext ensi on for SESA.

Ms. Curtis responded that the recommendati on was based on
audit findings and the different <criterion wused to
determ ne the extension recommendations. She admitted that
the audit recomrendations were an "inexact science." She
expl ai ned that considerations such as types of findings,
controversies, and the nature of work acconplished by the
board were reviewed when determ ning extensions. Wrkload
for the auditors and the legislators was also considered
when determning potential extensions, although workload
did not inpact this year's recomendations. Current
recomrendati ons were based on the findings in LB&A' s audit.

9:25:51 AM

PATRICK PILLAI, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR,  SPECIAL EDUCATI ON
SERVI CE AGENCY (SESA), showed a brief video about the
agency.

9:32: 36 AM

Senator Dunleavy asked if M. Pillai was the executive
director in FY 10.

M. Pillai responded that changes occurred in the executive
director position, the board president, and the entire
board. He stated the board president was PJ Ford Slack, a
principal in Sitka.

9:34:17 AM

M. Pillai responded to an earlier question by Senator
Dunl eavy regarding the "type A" teaching certificates. He
stated that all specialists for SESA had a type a
certificate and admnistrators had "type B" certificates.
He stated that SESA reviewed the entire board policy under

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 02/ 25/ 13 9:10 A M



the | eadership of Joseph Reeves with the Al aska Associ ation
of School Boards to address issues brought up by the audit.

Senat or Dunl eavy responded that teachers with type A or
"type B" certificates fell wunder Professional Teaching
Practices Conmm ssion (PTPC) and were subject to sanction in
the event of an ethics violation.

9: 35: 32 AM

M. Pillai I nt roduced slide 1 of hi s Power Poi nt
presentation (copy on file): "Special Education Service."

SESA provides consultation and training to support the
uni que educati onal needs of individuals and the
Al askan communities that serve them

M. Pillai discussed slide 2: "Background."

e Created in 1986; f or med as a not-for-profit
Cor por ati on;
e CGoverned by the Alaska Governor's Counci | on

Disabilities and Special Educati on;

e Receive Low Incidence Disabilities funding through
DOEED based on prior years statew de total enroll nent;

* Receives grant funding from State and Federal sources,
(DHHS and DOEED)

9:37: 03 AM

M. Pillai discussed slide 3 depicting a picture of SESA s
vision specialist working with a student in rural Al aska.
The specialist had been working with the agency for 15
years.

M. Pillai detailed slide 4. "A S 14.30.630(b) (1)
requires SESA to provide the follow ng special education
services:"

A Itinerant outreach services to students who are deaf,
deaf-blind, nmentally retarded, hearing inpaired, blind
and visual ly i mpai red, ort hopedi cal | y di sabl ed,
health-inpaired in other ways, and severely disturbed,
and to students with nultiple disabilities;

B. Special education instructional support and training
of local school district special education personnel
and

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 02/ 25/ 13 9:10 A M



C. O her services appropriate to special education needs.

9:38: 40 AM

M. Pillai discussed slide 5 a map depicting SESA s
presence in rural areas across Al aska along with the nunber
of students served in each of the areas. The nunber of
students depended on the size of the village, how far
villages were from urban areas, and the need for the
different disabilities. Many of the areas were inhabited by
Coast Guard and cannery workers leading to years with nore
or |less students.

M. Pillai detailed slide 6, a picture of a nmultiple
disabilities specialist working with a child in rura
Al aska. The specialist had worked with the agency for over
one and one hal f years.

9: 39: 38 AM

M. Pillai explained slide 7: "SESA Services."

e On-side consultation - Observation/ Mddeling/Evi dence
Based Strategies

* In-service training (professional devel opnent)
« Alaska State Special Education Conference (ASSEC)

e Specific courses designed and offered for wuniversity
credit

» Al aska Deaf Education Advisory Board

» CGovernor's Council/Education/Rural Education
» DEED- Specific Grants- AARC/ BTKH DSI

e O her Non-profits-Stone Soup/Center for Human

9:42: 26 AM

M. Pillai discussed slide 8 a picture of the SESA
websi t e. He pointed out the different disabilities
hi ghli ghted by the options presented on the honepage of the
websi te. He added that district admnistrators could
downl oad paperwork to nmake referrals for services needed by
the agency. The website was a resource for parents and
school districts.

M. Pill ai detailed slide 9: "SESA FY 12 Student

Consultation by District." The graph detailed the districts
served. He stated that the data conpiled included on-site

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 02/25/13 9:10 A M



visitation, calls from teachers seeking information from
the SESA library. He added that SESA allowed districts to
borrow materials that they considered purchasing. The slide
detailed 39 different districts when SESA worked with 45 in
2013.

M. Pillai discussed slide 10, a picture of Andrea Story, a
vi sion specialist, who worked for SESA for approximtely 23
years. M. Story was pictured working with a child wth
vision loss in rural Al aska.

9:44: 01 AM

M. Pillai discussed slide 11: "Inpact on Students and
Teachers." He provided an exanple of a syndrone that caused
a person to sleep all day and stay awake at night. After a
SESA specialist spent eight nonths of working with the
famly, the child displayed significant inprovenent. He
added that he hinself was the deaf and hard of hearing
teacher with the agency for 19 years, so he understood the
chal | enges faced by the teachers.

1. Reduced ability to pronote evidenced based practices.

2. Fewer on-site visits to provi de targeted
i nterventi ons.

3. Shorter visits to nmaximze travel dollars to include
nore sites.

4. Less tinme for classroom observation and program

enhancenent .

5. Loss of guidance to new special education teachers and
to cl assroom t eachers encountering uni que
di sabilities.

6. Loss of child specific educational i ntervention

strategi es nodeled on-site to teachers.
7. Reduced ability to recruit quality specialists to
Al aska.

9:45: 48 AM

M. Pill ai detailed slide 12: "2004 Individuals wth
Disabilities Education Act (1DEA)."

The State is required to neet the 2004 IDEA to "ensure
that all children with disabilities have available to
them a free appropriate public education that
enphasi zes special education and related services
designated to neet their unique needs."

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 02/25/13 9:10 A M



The Legislature intended for SESA to help DEED ful fill
this requirenment by assisting schools with providing
speci al education children affected by LID.

9:46: 19 AM

M. Pillai discussed slide 13: "Legislative Audit Report
June 2, 2012."

Recommendation 1: Reiterating from the prior report
that the Legislature should review SESA fundi ng; and

"Over the past 14 vyears, school districts have
received increases in their funding formla, yet
SESA's funding fornmula has not increased. .the
hi storical process for evaluating and increasing SESA
fundi ng has been a | egislative process.."

9:46: 47 AM

M. Pillai detailed slide 14: "Legislative Audit Report,
June 22, 2012."

"Due to inflation, the real value of SESA's LID
budget, as established 14 years ago, has decreased 36
percent. Accounting for inflation since 1998, SESA s
f undi ng formul a in today' s dol | ars woul d be
approximately $21.50 per student rather than the
current funding fornula anmount of $15.75. As a result,
SESA is experiencing challenges wth recruiting and
retaining education specialists wth specialized
di sability endorsements and neeting schools' need for
itinerant outreach services."

9:47: 31 AM

M. Pillai detailed slide 15: "Senate Bill 17 Concl usion."”

1. Al aska Statute Funding Calculation for SESA should be
changed to $21. 50.
2. SESA needs these funds to:
a. fulfill the intent of the Legislature, and the
mandat e of the 2004 | DEA;
b. provide <conpetitive salaries to attract and
retain qualified specialists;

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 02/ 25/ 13 9:10 A M



c. continue providing quality services for LID
chi | dren;

d. maintain consistent infrastructure despite short
termor discontinued grant funding cycles.

9:49: 20 AM

M. Pillai detailed the graph on slide 16: "ADM (i.e.
SESA's Funding) vs. SESA LID Student Count FY 2001 - FY
2013." The graph illustrated the declining Average Daily
Menbership (ADM in red and the increasing LowIncidence
Disabilities (LID during the same tine frame. Between 2004
and 2013, SESA |ost over $200 thousand in revenue based on
declining ADM During the sane period, the LID students
served by SESA increased. The graph depicted 260 students,
but SESA served 270 students at the tinme of the hearing.

M. Pillai discussed slide 17: "A Review of SESA s Low
I nci dence Disabilities Funding Over the Past 10 Years."

M. Pillai discussed slide 18: "CPl and BSA |ncrease vs.
SESA Fundi ng. "

This chart shows the increase in the Consuner Price
| ndex and Base Student Allocation, with SESA s funding
remai ning flat.

9:50: 18 AM

M. Pillai detailed slide 19: "SESA's Actual Funding vs.
Funding if Equivalent to BSA vs. Student Count.™

This graph shows how LID student count has increased
while SESA's overall funding has decreased due to
decr eased ADM

9:50: 39 AM

M. Pillai discussed slide 20: "LID Cost of Operations,
Fund Bal ances and G ant Expenditures FY 2005 - FY 2013 (9
years).

9:51: 52 AM

M. Pillai discussed slide 21: "How SESA's Funding Should
be Structured VERSUS How it is Currently Structured.” He
expl ained that the graph on the right exhibited the current

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 02/25/13 9:10 A M



structure. The resources were shared by LID and grant
funding. He stated that grant funding fluctuated. The graph
on the left illustrated a solid infrastructure that could
be used to assist the state with grant-witing. He noted
the difficulty in recruiting with one or two-year grants.
The sunset clause coupled with the Ilimts of grant funding
added to the conplications.

9:53: 20 AM

M. Pillai detailed slide 22: "Inpact of Continued Under-
Fundi ng: "

1. Reduced ability to pronote evidenced based practices.

2. Fewer on-site visits to provi de targeted
i nterventions.

3. Shorter visits to maximze travel dollars to include
nore sites.

4. Less tinme for classroom observation and program

enhancenent .

5. Loss of guidance to new special education teachers and
to cl assroom t eachers encountering uni que
di sabilities.

6. Loss of child specific educational i ntervention

strategi es nodel ed on-site to teachers.
7. Reduced ability to recruit and retain quality
speci al i sts.

9:54: 03 AM

Co-Chair Meyer asked about slide 9. He asked about the
acronym BSSD |isted on the school districts served.

M. Pillai responded Bering Strait School District was
shortened to BSSD.

Co- Chair Meyer asked if school districts contributed to the
fundi ng for SESA

M. Pillai replied that SESA was a free service for schoo
districts. He shared a letter of support from one school
district testifying that the free services helped neet the
district's needs to provide assistance in renote rural
school s.

Co-Chair Meyer asked about how long a specialist would
remain in the rural schools.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 02/ 25/ 13 9:10 A M



M. Pillai responded that the typical length of stay was
one week.

9: 56: 09 AM

Co-Chair Meyer asked about specialist worked wth the
school 's speci al education teachers.

M. Pillai responded that the challenges determ ned the
strategy regarding the child and the inclusion of the staff
in the classroom He nentioned that some children were in
mai nstream cl assroons, so the specialist wirked with those
t eachers too.

Co- Chair Meyer pointed out that very few specialists worked
in the Anchorage area. He asked why that was the case.

9:57:13 AM

M. Pillai responded that the Anchorage school districts
had their own specialists as well as trainings offered to

the communities. He credited the small nunber of SESA
specialists in Anchorage to the needs of deaf and blind
students, which were deenmed high-need and required

addi tional support. He nentioned exanples of other high
need disabilities that benefit from the support of SESA s
speci al i sts.

9:58: 25 AM

Co-Chair Kelly asked if Alaska nmet the federal requirenent
to provide supported educati on w thout SESA.

M. Pillai replied that the federal requirenents would not
be met w thout SESA. He added that SESA was listed as a
resource on the departnment's website and in the state
handbook as a resource for the various needs of the staff.
If there was a teacher in a school district that |acked the
expertise needed to help with a certain child, a parent my
choose to take the school district to court. Many potenti al
situations of litigation were prevented by SESA' s
intervention as a neutral party.

Senator O son commented on slide 9. He pointed out that
BSSD docunented an abundance of SESA student consultations

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 02/ 25/ 13 9:10 A M



as conpared with other districts on the chart. He wondered
why the consultations in his district were so nunerous.

M. Pillai responded that the villages were spread out and
crisis intervention <calls were received from various
communities in the district. He stated that SESA co-wote a
grant with BSSA called "Mesh Alaska,” which included
organizing a training led by a national presenter. The
training led to a heightened awareness about the services
provided and as a result, i ndi vi dual villages were
requesting nore services.

Senator O son asked about the fiscal note. He asked if the
note increased or maintained current funding.

M. Pillai responded that the fiscal note retained the
current operation's funding. An increase of 36 percent
would yield an extra $700 thousand to the agency, which
woul d be necessary to sustain operations.

Senator O son wondered which services would not be provided
wi t hout the increase.

M. Pillai responded that the outreach nodel would not
provide services in individual areas w thout SESA. Wt hout
funding, the specialized evaluations on-sight professiona
devel opment for teachers would not exist. He provided an
exanpl e of SESA' s value. The comm ssioner had a speciali st
in Hoonah after the shooting that addressed nultiple issues
for students and staff. The lack of funding would inpact
students' achi evenent because teachers would not be able to
i mpl enent plans for high-need students.

10: 02: 09 AM

Co-Chair Kelly asked about the grants for non-profits that
were carrying out the mssion directed by the federal
government. He spoke about the difference in operations for
the non-profit organizations and the state. He pointed out
that grant restrictions limted the hiring capabilities of
non-profit organizations. Wth state government, enployee
conpensation grew within statutory structure and contracts.
He added that SESA could find difficulty obtaining noney
from the state to increase or even continue operations
because of restricted budgets. He wanted organi zations |ike
SESA to do a job that the state was not suited to do. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 02/ 25/ 13 9:10 A M



hoped to look carefully at the possibility of increasing
SESA' s budget .

10: 04: 20 AM

Senator Dunleavy opined that the program was needed and
ought to be funded by the legislature. He noted that a
school district could make a choice to appeal to an
organi zation |ike SESA for help with an exceptional child,
or the district could hire the help directly with their
resources. He opined that SESA saved the state noney, by
providing options for assistance wth sone rare and
exceptional children's educational needs. He spoke to the
expertise of SESA's staff. He agreed with Co-Chair Kelly
and woul d vote to increase SESA' s fundi ng.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered how the state would address the
federal mandate for the education of those children wth
speci al needs w t hout SESA

10: 06: 47 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough discussed the fiscal note. She asked
about the positions and wondered if all enployees were
contract ed.

M. Pillai responded that SESA enpl oyed 11 specialists.

10: 07: 25 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough requested a corrected fiscal note
illustrating the full time personnel working for SESA.

M. Pillai responded that the all of the specialists worked
full-time with yearly contracts.

Vice-Chair Fairclough asked how many nenbers served on
SESA' s board of directors.

M. Pillai responded ten.

10: 08: 25 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough asked if the board neeting attendance
was good.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 02/ 25/ 13 9:10 A M



M. Pillai responded that attendance was good. He conmented
on the representation's diversity.

Vice-Chair Fairclough asked if the board travelled for
nmeeti ngs.

M. Pillai responded that the board nenbers travelled to
Anchorage for the four annual neetings.

Vice-Chair Fairclough asked if all neetings were in
Anchor age.

M. Pillai responded in the affirmative.

10: 08: 51 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy asked about the staff. He wondered if
services were contracted.

M. Pillai responded that the agreenent was negotiated and
t he enpl oyees were classified as full-tinmne.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked if nenbers belonged to the Nationa
Educati on Associ ati on ( NEA).

M. Pillai responded in the affirmative. He added that
enpl oyees contributed to TRS.

Vice-Chair Fairclough reported to the commttee that DEED
confirmed that since the SESA' s enployees were not state
enpl oyees, thus the Full-Tine Enployee (FTE) portion of the
fiscal note was irrelevant. She inmagined that the fact that
enpl oyees paid into the TRS would sonehow violate the
definition of FTE. She believed that SESA was incorrect in
their nethod of classifying enpl oyees.

M. Pillai responded that even though enployees sign an
annual contract, they were in-fact considered full tine
enpl oyees.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough stated that DEED was classifying the
enpl oyees differently. She enphasized the need for clarity
regarding the state's classification of enployees.

Co-Chair Meyer stated that the admnistration would help
the commttee to better understand the fiscal note.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 16 02/ 25/ 13 9:10 A M



10: 10: 55 AM

M LLI E RYAN, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, REACH I NC., explained that
REACH provided services to approximtely 400 children and
adults with disabilities. She stated that prior to her work
with REACH she was the executive director of the
Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education.
She then served as an ex officio nmenber of SESA  She
addressed comon questions, such as why the council served
as the governing board for SESA. She was instructed by her

predecessor at the council that the arrangenent existed
because the council served as the special education
advi sory panel and SESA was a special education program
The council, located in DHSS ended up as the special

education advisory panel because the legislature and DEED
did not want another small board with a narrow purpose, so
i nstead sought a board with a common interest.

Ms. Ryan pointed out another conmon question regarding SESA
regarding the duplication of funding for intensive needs or
for students with severe disabilities. She stressed that
having a lowincidence disability did not nean that a
student was eligible for intensive needs funding. She
menti oned that DEED required that seven specific criterion
be nmet to determine eligibility for intensive needs
fundi ng. She added that school districts utilized intensive
needs funding to provide the full-time aide, to purchase
specialized materials and technology required for the
intensive needs student. She stated that iif SESA was
i nvol ved, the specialist worked with the district to assess
the students and identify which instructional materials
were best suited for the needs, and would teach staff how
to use the materials and technol ogy. She strongly supported
t he passage of SB 17.

10: 13: 52 AM

GENEVI EVE HOLLI NS, FI NANCE Dl RECTCR, SESA (via
tel econference), addressed the question about enployees of
SESA being state enployees. She «clarified that SESA
enpl oyees were not state enployees, but enployees of the
political subdivision of the state.

Co- Chair Meyer requested further clarification.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 17 02/ 25/ 13 9:10 A M



Ms. Hollins replied that the fiscal note did not reflect
FTEs for SESA because its enployees were those of the
political subdivision of the state.

Co- Chai r Meyer rel ayed t hat he woul d have t he
adm nistration further explain the classification of SESA' s
enpl oyees as docunented in the fiscal note.

10: 15: 29 AM

Co-Chair Kelly thought that the full time enployees were
not listed on the fiscal note because the budget was not
i ncreased and a request for new positions was not active.

10: 15: 54 AM

MARGARET KAVANAUGH, TEACHER, KODI AK (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 17. She worked as both a regul ar
and special education teacher and with the infant |earning
program She stated that SESA was the nost valuable
resource she had encountered because of its support of
teachers. Wthout the support of SESA's specialists

teachers often felt unable to neet all students' needs. She
di scussed the burn-out that resulted from the Ilack of
support. The support of a SESA specialist with their unique
knowl edge and training with low incidence disabilities
enabl ed success for students and teachers. She added that
parents also benefitted from SESA's services. She shared a
story about her own son who was diaghosed wth |ow
incidence disabilities. She concluded that SESA had
benefitted her life personally and professionally.

10: 20: 46 AM

JENNI FER EUBANK, TEACHER, KODIAK (via teleconference),
testified in support of the |egislation. She announced t hat
she was a certified special education teacher in Kodiak

She taught in the life-skills program for grades 6-8. Prior
to teaching, she woirked as a specialist for Assistive
Technol ogy of Al aska (ATLA), which was a federal program
used to introduce and support assistive technology for
students. During her tinme with ATLA, she worked with SESA
to help provide materials needed in rural villages and she
realized that SESA produced inpressive specialists. She
requested the services from SESA currently in her special

education class room

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 18 02/ 25/ 13 9:10 A M



10: 27: 00 AM

Co- Chair Meyer closed public testinony.

10: 27: 22 AM

Co-Chair Meyer intended to hold the bill in commttee to
di scuss the fiscal note. He wanted to discuss anending the
bill to increase the funding. He wanted to talk about the
fiscal note.

10: 28: 11 AM

Senator O son asked about line six of the CS. He assuned
that the amount should be changed to $21.50 to align the
bill with the fiscal note

10: 29: 07 AM
AT EASE

10: 29: 36 AM

RECONVENED

LES MORSE, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND
EARLY DEVELOPMENT clarified that SESA' s enpl oyees were not
considered state servants based on statute, but they were
consi dered enployees to the non-profit agency. The fisca

note was built as a grant to that agency, just as the state
granted Base Student Allocation (BSA) noney to a school

district, wthout accounting for staff. He added that SESA
contributed to the retirement system in the sane way that
school districts and municipalities did.

Co-Chair Meyer stated that SB 17 renewed the current
program An increase, as suggested by a commttee nenber,
woul d require a change to the fiscal note.

10: 31: 23 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough pointed out that SESA also utilized
grant funds. She w shed to better understand the funding
structure in relation to grants and general funds.

M. Mrse responded that SESA did receive grant noney,
which was not reflected in the fiscal note. He understood

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 19 02/ 25/ 13 9:10 A M



that additional state dollars were received as grants under
sone ci rcunst ances.

10: 32: 28 AM

Co-Chair Meyer asked how the state would neet federal
requi renents w thout SESA

M. Mrse replied that school districts and the state would
be greatly challenged by a |ack of the services provided by
SESA. He added that if a district could not provide
services required wthin an Individualized Education
Program (1EP), a famly could seek |egal recourse against
the school district and the state. He added that if SESA
did not exi st, districts wuld require a simlar
organi zation to provide support for l ow incidence
disabilities. He credited the efficiency of SESA for
Al askan school districts.

Co-Chair Meyer asked if the admnistration supported the
bill.

M. Morse stated that the administration was very
supportive of the sunset extension for SESA. The depart nent
woul d allocate the funds appropriated by the |egislature.
He opined that the |egislature ought to review the evidence
and consi der options |ike increasing funding.

10: 35: 02 AM

Senator Dunl eavy wunderstood that SESA had not seen a
funding increase for 15 years.

M. Mbrse concurred.

Senator Dunleavy asked if the increases given to school
districts were for legislative intent, although SESA was
not provided the sane increases.

M. Mrse replied that a fornmula approach was enpl oyed for
funding SESA and the school districts. He stated that SESA
did not fall under the BSA addressed, so their funding was
not i ncreased.

Senator Dunleavy asked if the separation between funding

increases for SESA and other districts was determ ned by
t he departnent.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 20 02/ 25/ 13 9:10 A M



M. Mrse responded that the statutory approach enpl oyed by
the legislature determ ned the structure.

10: 36: 06 AM

Senator O son asked about a conparison with other states
and their approach to the federal nandates.

M. Mrse replied that all states handled the federal
requirenents differently. He explained that sonme states
provided a wi der array of services. He imagined that sone
rural states had created solutions or prograns that
mrrored SESA's.

10: 37: 50 AM

SB 17 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10:38 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 21 02/ 25/ 13 9:10 A M



